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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: My name is David

          3  Weprin, and I chair the Committee. Today we have a

          4  number of items on our agenda. We have a number of

          5  members here. I'll introduce the ones that are here

          6  and we'll be getting more members as the morning or

          7  almost afternoon progresses. We have Council Member

          8  Bill DeBlasio from Brooklyn, Council Member Tony

          9  Avella from Queens, Council Member and Minority

         10  Leader Jim Oddo from Staten Island, Council Member

         11  Lew Fidler from Brooklyn, Council Member Oliver

         12  Koppell from the Bronx, Council Member Majority

         13  Leader Joel Rivera from the Bronx, Council Member

         14  Madeline Provenzano from the Bronx, Council Member

         15  Christine Quinn from Manhattan, Council Member Leroy

         16  Comrie from Queens, Council Member Dennis Gallagher

         17  from Queens, Council Member David Yassky from

         18  Brooklyn, Council Member Melinda Katz from Queens.

         19  That's good enough.

         20                 We have two budget modifications to

         21  consider. MN 8 would modify last year's fiscal 2005

         22  budget to move 210 million from the labor reserve to

         23  different City agencies to fund the DC 37 one

         24  percent increase, 193 million to fund the police

         25  raises resulting from the PERB arbitration, and
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          2  $264,000 for wage increases for plumbers and

          3  carpenters at CUNY.

          4                 MN 2, which would modify the current

          5  budget moves $19 million from the labor reserve to

          6  fund the DC 37 one percent increase. Funds workers

          7  compensation for volunteer firefighters, adds $9

          8  million to the budget for day care slots, and

          9  $700,000 for operating expenses for the new Bronx

         10  regional library branch.

         11                 Next we have a preconsidered

         12  resolution asking the state to allow the City to

         13  replace its portion of the sales tax on gasoline

         14  with a flat excised tax per gallon, a resolution

         15  prime sponsored by Council Member Avella who is

         16  here.

         17                 The price of gas has skyrocketed

         18  recently and the current tax structure in which the

         19  sales tax increases, as the price increases, only

         20  adds insult to injury.

         21                 We will also be considering two

         22  BID-related items.  At our August hearing we set

         23  today as the date for the first hearing on a local

         24  law to establish the DUMBO BID in the Borough of

         25  Brooklyn so that we may hear all those who may be
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          2  affected by the establishment of the BIDs for which

          3  to speak.

          4                 After we hear from all witnesses, we

          5  will adjourn the hearing for at least 30 days, which

          6  is the statutorily -- where is page ten? Mandated

          7  time during which property owners objecting to the

          8  establishment of a BID file objections.

          9                 In the absence of significant

         10  objections, if the Committee and the Council can

         11  answer the following four questions affirmatively,

         12  they may adopt the local law establishing the BID.

         13                 The four questions we must be

         14  prepared to answer are: Were all notices of hearings

         15  for all hearings required to be held published and

         16  mailed as required by law and otherwise sufficient?

         17                 Two, does all the real property

         18  within the district boundaries benefit from the

         19  establishment of the district, except as otherwise

         20  provided by the law?

         21                 Three, is all real property

         22  benefitted by the district included within the

         23  district?

         24                 And, four, is the establishment of

         25  the district in the best interest of the public?
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          2                 If the Committee finds in the

          3  affirmative on these four questions, and the number

          4  of objections required to prevent the creation of

          5  the BID are not filed, then the legislation can be

          6  adopted.

          7                 Today we will also consider proposed

          8  Resolution 1126-A which would set October 11th as

          9  the date for hearing on an amendment to the district

         10  plan governing MetroTech BID in Brooklyn.

         11                 The amendment would change the method

         12  of assessment of two classes of commercial property

         13  within the district. Although the law does not

         14  require written notice to property owners, in

         15  keeping with my commitment to maximum outreach, I

         16  have asked Small Business Services to ensure that

         17  written notice of the hearing is mailed to all

         18  owners within the district.

         19                 We will also consider proposed Intro.

         20  No. 690-A, the bill we heard in August to create a

         21  separate utility tax rate for co-ops that produce

         22  and distribute their own energy to tenants.

         23                 I'm proud to be the prime sponsor

         24  along with Council Member Christine Quinn and

         25  Council Member Domenic Recchia on this legislation.
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          2                 Currently, two large co-ops,

          3  Northshore Towers, located in my district in Queens,

          4  and Penn South, located in Council Member Chris

          5  Quinn's district in Manhattan, are being charged

          6  utility tax because they provide submetered energy

          7  to tenants.

          8                 The irony is that if these co-ops did

          9  not submeter in an attempt to conserve energy, they

         10  would not be subject to the tax.

         11                 At our last hearing, no one spoke in

         12  opposition to this common sense legislation, and I

         13  am going to call for a vote on this today.

         14                 Finally, we will consider a partial

         15  tax exemption for Section 811 project to provide

         16  supportive housing for persons with disabilities.

         17                 The project contains 18 units and is

         18  in Council Member Charles Barron's district. Council

         19  Member Barron supports the exemption.

         20                 I'm now going to first hear testimony

         21  on the DUMBO BID. The first witness, or maybe series

         22  of witnesses, is George Glatter from the New York

         23  City Department of Small Business Services. Is there

         24  anybody else with you, Mr. Glatter?

         25                 MR. GLATTER: Yes, there is. You
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          2  should have received Mr. Wolentes (phonetic), Mr.

          3  Montvelcohn (phonetic), and Michael Burke (phonetic)

          4  requests to speak.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Would they

          6  like to come and speak with you on the panel?

          7                 MR. GLATTER: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. If you

          9  could all come up then. We have Jed Wolentes, Thomas

         10  Montvelcohn and Michael Burke.

         11                 Before we start the testimony on the

         12  DUMBO BID, I want to call upon my colleague, Council

         13  Member David Yassky, for a statement, because the

         14  proposed BID is in his district.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you. And

         16  just very briefly, Chair Weprin, and members of the

         17  Committee, I urge you to adopt this legislation that

         18  will create the BID. I think is is a burgeoning and

         19  newly-thriving neighborhood, thanks in large part to

         20  the efforts of Mr. Wolentes, who is here today, and

         21  of course Michael Burke and the Downtown Business

         22  Council.

         23                 The neighborhood is in kind of a

         24  unique situation because without a large residential

         25  past it needs help getting the basic services. This
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          2  BID will do that.

          3                 I won't speak to all four of the

          4  questions, but simply the last question is

          5  establishment of the district in the public interest

          6  as the representative of the DUMBO neighborhood,

          7  assert that it is very clearly in the public

          8  interest, and I urge you to pass it. Thank you,

          9  Chair Weprin, for hearing this bill.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         11  Council Member Yassky.

         12                 Mr. Glatter.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Okay,

         14  thank you.

         15                 Good morning, Chairman Weprin and

         16  members of the Finance Committee. I'm George

         17  Glatter, Assistant Commissioner at the Department of

         18  Small Business Services.

         19                 SBS supports the establishment of the

         20  DUMBO BID in the Borough of Brooklyn.

         21                 Geographically the proposed DUMBO BID

         22  encompasses properties that are generally bounded by

         23  the Brooklyn East River waterfront from Hudson

         24  Avenue to Old Fulton Street on the west, Old Fulton

         25  Street to the south, Prospect Street to the East and
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          2  Hudson Avenue to the North.

          3                 Services to be provided in DUMBO BID

          4  district include street and sidewalk sweeping,

          5  maintenance, graffiti removal, security services,

          6  marketing and promotion at the local area, capital

          7  improvements, beautification of the local shopping

          8  area, administration and other services as may be

          9  required for the promotion and enhancement of the

         10  district.

         11                 The DUMBO District Management

         12  Association will manage the district, the budgets

         13  for the first year of operation is $400,000.

         14                 As required by law, the DUMBO BID

         15  Steering Committee mailed the summary of the City

         16  Council resolution to each owner of real property

         17  within the proposed district at the address shown on

         18  the latest City assessment roll, or to such other

         19  persons as are registered with the City to receive

         20  tax bills concerning real property within the

         21  district, and to tenants in each building within the

         22  proposed district.

         23                 In addition, SBS arranged for

         24  publication of a copy of the summary of the

         25  resolution, which will be published at least once in
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          2  the City Record. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Glatter.

          5                 Gentlemen.

          6                 MR. WOLENTES: Good morning. My name

          7  is Jed Woltentes. I am a principal with Two Trees

          8  Management Company. We have been significant

          9  developers down in the neighborhood for about 25

         10  years now, invested several hundred million dollars

         11  down there. Continue to own about two and a half

         12  million square feet and will be responsible for

         13  close to half of the annual assessment of this BID.

         14                 I'm here to speak in support of it,

         15  to thank George and the staff at DSBS for all their

         16  help. It's been about a two and a half year process.

         17  We've worked very hard to do lots of outreach to the

         18  community. There are lots of different aspects of

         19  the community that we want to make sure are

         20  represented, both the residential piece, but also

         21  artistic groups, retailers, and the neighborhood is

         22  very much in transition, and we wanted to set up a

         23  structure that makes sure that everybody is

         24  represented and make sure the BID has some

         25  flexibility as it grows and moves forward.
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          2                 So, I think we've accomplished all

          3  those things. I think the support has been almost

          4  unanimous, and we're happy to see it finally become

          5  a reality and hopefully by the end of the year,

          6  whatever the culmination of this timetable is, we

          7  can be up and running.

          8                 But I think the services that we're

          9  looking to supplement are very important. I think

         10  there's typically a trend in this City with

         11  under-developed neighborhoods getting

         12  under-represented in terms of the services and I

         13  think BIDs have been a very successful way to sort

         14  of bridge that gap and I think this is a very good

         15  example of that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. We've

         17  also been joined by some additional colleagues. We

         18  have Council Member Helen Sears from Queens in the

         19  front, Council Member Gale Brewer from Manhattan,

         20  and Council Member Albert Vann from Brooklyn.

         21                 Proceed.

         22                 MR. MONTVELCOHN: Good morning. My

         23  name is Tom Montvelcohn (phonetic). I am the

         24  president of the DUMBO BID Steering Committee. I

         25  just want to very quickly summarize the outreach
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          2  that has taken place in the establishment of the

          3  District Management Plan.

          4                 We created a Steering Committee that

          5  had 11 members, included commercial property owners,

          6  arts organizations, commercial tenants, residents,

          7  as well as the representative of the DUMBO

          8  Neighborhood Association.

          9                 We had a very extensive program of

         10  outreach. We had a survey. We had seven

         11  informational mailings. We had an informational

         12  website and we had seven community meetings.

         13                 As a result of that extensive

         14  outreach, we generated substantial support for the

         15  plan. Of the 21 responding commercial owners, 20

         16  voted to establish the BID. These 20 votes

         17  constituted 95.3 percent of the commercial assessed

         18  valuation of the district, and our plan was endorsed

         19  by not only Councilman Yassky but also Borough

         20  President Markowitz, State Senator Marty Connor and

         21  District Attorney Hynes. It was also endorsed

         22  unanimously by the DUMBO Neighborhood Association,

         23  and by Brooklyn Community Board 2.

         24                 MR. BURKE: Good morning. Thank you

         25  for allowing us to testify. My name is Michael
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          2  Burke. I'm with the Downtown Brooklyn Council.

          3                 The Downtown Council represents the

          4  business, cultural and academic leadership of

          5  Downtown Brooklyn, and we are strong proponents of

          6  Business Improvement Districts. We strongly support

          7  the creation of a Business Improvement District in

          8  DUMBO.

          9                 We believe that BIDs provide amazing,

         10  an incredible ongoing support for local businesses,

         11  local communities, and they really do help stabilize

         12  central business districts like Downtown Brooklyn.

         13                 MetroTech is a very good example of

         14  this, where it was created in partnership with the

         15  City and the private sector to make sure that the

         16  Central Business District of Downtown Brooklyn

         17  really did thrive and it's been very successful.

         18                 Currently there are four BIDs in

         19  Downtown Brooklyn, MetroTech, Fulton Mall, Montague

         20  Street and the newly-established Myrtle Avenue BID.

         21                 The Downtown Brooklyn Council has

         22  been working with local elected officials, small

         23  business services and local merchants to expand

         24  those BIDs in other areas of downtown Brooklyn that

         25  aren't currently served, such as Livingston Street,
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          2  Schermerhorn and Flatbush Avenue.

          3                 Looking at DUMBO, you see a community

          4  that's really transformed over the past decade into

          5  a thriving mixed-use community attracting small

          6  businesses, artisans and arts organizations. And

          7  like MetroTech, we believe that a BID will help

          8  stabilize this community and help it thrive over the

          9  next few decades.

         10                 We are strong supporters of the DUMBO

         11  BID and we're very happy to see that all of the

         12  local elected officials and community organizations

         13  also support the establishment of the BID.

         14                 In addition, both Community Board 2

         15  and the City Planning Commission unanimously

         16  supported the creation of the BID.

         17                 So, on behalf of the Downtown

         18  Brooklyn leadership, we support the creation of this

         19  BID and we urge the City Council to as well.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Any

         22  questions?

         23                 Council Member Brewer.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: This is more

         25  general. The BID sounds great, but maybe for small
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          2  business, obviously I'm the hugest supporter of the

          3  work that Monica Blum does, not only with the BID on

          4  the Lincoln Center area, but also with the after

          5  school program at Martin Luther King Jr. High

          6  School. And of course your Commissioner set the

          7  precedent when he did the same on 14th Street with

          8  the high school there.

          9                 So, my question is, given all these

         10  BIDs in this area, are there some other projects

         11  that the BIDs work on that are related but not

         12  directly related? Sort of like best practices kind

         13  of situation?

         14                 MR. BURKE: You know, each of the BIDs

         15  has unique programs. The smaller BIDs, like Montague

         16  Street, really focuses on basic BID services. Clean

         17  and safe.

         18                 The MetroTech BID has a much larger

         19  budget and a much broader depth to it. It has

         20  established some unique programs with George

         21  Westinghouse High School, a partnership particularly

         22  with some of the businesses, with major businesses

         23  located within MetroTech. It does facade improvement

         24  programs specifically targeted at small businesses.

         25  And a lot of programs that although the BID helps
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          2  the environment of downtown in general, a number of

          3  programs specifically targeted at helping local mom

          4  and pop businesses and local merchants thrive in

          5  this very competitive environment.

          6                 So, the facade improvement program,

          7  technical assistance, and technical assistance, in

          8  particular in partnership with my organization and

          9  with the Brooklyn Chamber of Commerce. So you have a

         10  whole breadth of services that they're able to

         11  offer.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm just

         13  saying in the Ken Adams's mode, and in Commissioner

         14  Walsh's mode, to try to think outside the box when

         15  you're thinking about BIDs.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         18  Council member.

         19                 Any further questions? We've been

         20  joined by our Deputy Majority Leader Bill Perkins

         21  from Manhattan.

         22                 Mr. Glatter, if you could stay and

         23  talk about the MetroTech. Thank you, gentlemen.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Thank

         25  you, Mr. Chair and members of the Committee.
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          2                 The Department of Small Business

          3  Services supports the City Council resolution

          4  amending the date -- setting the date, time and

          5  place for a public hearing concerning an amendment

          6  to the amended MetroTech District Plan.

          7                 The MetroTech BID wishes to change

          8  the method of assessment upon which the district

          9  charge is based.

         10                 In the current plan, an assessment

         11  for development sites and utility properties, which

         12  make up Class A, is based on square footage and a

         13  fixed percentage of the annual BID budget.

         14                 In addition, the assessment for

         15  commercial properties, which make up Class B, is

         16  based on assessed valuation and a fixed percentage

         17  of the annual budget.

         18                 The proposed amendment will change

         19  the assessment formula to assess properties based on

         20  assessed value. The amendment, when it becomes law,

         21  will result in a reduction in the assessment for

         22  commercial properties.

         23                 The MetroTech BID will arrange for

         24  the publication of a public hearing notice at least

         25  once in a local newspaper as required by law.
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          2                 In addition, the BID will mail a

          3  notice to property owners as requested by the City

          4  Council Finance Committee of the public hearing.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

          7                 Any questions for Mr. Glatter?

          8                 Council Member Sears.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Just for

         10  clarification. When you say they're to be reassessed

         11  on market value, can you just -- I mean, I know what

         12  market value is. I'm not quite certain if we're

         13  talking about the market value of that piece of

         14  property.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: It's

         16  the assessed value rather than market value.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: The assessed

         18  value.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Yes,

         20  the assessed value.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Glatter.
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          2                 We're now going to discuss the two

          3  budget mods. If we could hear from our excellent

          4  super-competent, outstanding, dedicated public

          5  finance -- public finance -- Finance Division staff,

          6  led by Larian Angelo.

          7                 Larian.

          8                 Okay and we have Staci Emanuel and

          9  Frank Tramontano. And for those of you that don't

         10  recognize him, he's also known as "Cheech." But he

         11  looks a little different.

         12                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Always. There's two

         13  modifications before you. One is for Fiscal Year

         14  '05, the past, and one is for Fiscal Year '06, that

         15  we're currently in.

         16                 I'm going to talk about the Fiscal

         17  Year '05 modification, which is MN 8. Then Staci

         18  will talk about MN 2, which is for Fiscal Year '06.

         19                 In Fiscal Year '05, the modification

         20  is money going from the labor reserve to various

         21  agencies to implement the final component of the DC

         22  37 contract, which is one percent retroactive for

         23  Fiscal Year 2005, and to move the money from the

         24  labor reserve to the Police Department to take care

         25  of the PBA contract that was awarded recently, and
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          2  to fund increases for plumbers and carpenters at

          3  CUNY, the money again coming from the labor reserve.

          4                 The reason why this is necessary is

          5  because I think there was a determination by the

          6  Comptroller that the money could not be charged

          7  against the labor reserve and had to move into the

          8  agency's budgets to be moved out, which they will

          9  be, it's my understanding, within the next couple of

         10  weeks to pay out these contracts.

         11                 Any questions?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes. Council

         13  Member Oddo.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: On MN 2 --

         15                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Excuse me for a

         16  minute.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Oh, I'm sorry.

         18                 MR. TRAMONTANO: That was MN 8.

         19                 MS. EMANUEL: Okay, MN 2. Also moves

         20  19 million from the labor reserve to fund the one

         21  percent of collective bargaining for DC 37 and for

         22  Fiscal 2006.

         23                 It also moves 10 million from the

         24  general reserve to fund some additional needs that

         25  were supposed to happen at the Fiscal 2006 adopted
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          2  budget in June but did not happen. And this included

          3  funding for additional day care slots for operating

          4  costs for Bronx Regional Library, and funding for

          5  Volunteer Fire Ambulance Corps.

          6                 In addition to that, there's

          7  additional an clean up for City Council allocations.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          9  Oddo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

         11                 On the 10 million you just spoke

         12  about, workers comp, for volunteer firefighters, day

         13  care slots, New Bronx Regional Library, and then it

         14  says "new needs as identified by the

         15  Administration."

         16                 Those new needs as identified by the

         17  Administration are the same as the City Council

         18  projects you just mentioned?

         19                 MS. EMANUEL: Yes, that would include

         20  that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, what are

         22  they, and how much are they?

         23                 MS. EMANUEL: A total of $400,000.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Oh, that's the

         25  total, 400,000? And it's for?
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          2                 MS. EMANUEL: Various allocations for

          3  groups.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And how do they

          5  become new needs? Who determines their new needs?

          6                 MS. EMANUEL: This was by the

          7  Administration.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: The

          9  Administration realized that there were new needs on

         10  Council capital initiatives?

         11                 MS. EMANUEL: This is expense, not

         12  capital.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Oh, on the

         14  expense side.

         15                 So, the Administration realized that

         16  there were new needs for expense initiatives by

         17  Council members?

         18                 MS. EMANUEL: Right. And some of these

         19  are probably things that should have happened at

         20  adoption that weren't included.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Is my name on

         22  that list by any chance?

         23                 MS. EMANUEL: I don't know.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Can we put my

         25  name on that list?
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          2                 MS. EMANUEL: I'm sure you could talk

          3  to them about putting --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Is this unusual?

          5  Or is this usually how we do things?

          6                 In other words, these things could

          7  have easily been in the budget at adoption.

          8                 MS. EMANUEL: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: They're not.

         10                 They're not because these new ideas

         11  came in after the fact or?

         12                 MS. EMANUEL: Not necessarily. It

         13  could have been things that they wanted included

         14  that didn't get included at the time of adoption

         15  that they intended to have done.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Do these things

         17  go oink oink? Is that a fair question?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: It depends on

         19  what part of the City you're from.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: If my name is

         21  not on the list, these things go oink oink.

         22                 All right, thank you, Staci.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Any other

         24  questions?

         25                 And we've been joined by Council
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          2  Member Mike McMahon from Staten Island.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: And Council

          6  Member Robert Jackson from Manhattan. And who else

          7  did I miss, anybody? And now Council Member McMahon.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chairman. Any time I can have my name associated

         10  with yours and Council Member Jackson's, that's a

         11  good day for me.

         12                 Staci, I don't understand the

         13  relation between MN 8 and MN 2.

         14                 MR. TRAMONTANO: One is for Fiscal

         15  Year '05, MN 8, and one is for Fiscal Year '06,

         16  which is MN 2. And what they're related on is they

         17  start out taking care of the collective bargaining

         18  issue for DC 37, the one percent. That's the only

         19  item that's in both.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: It's in both,

         21  but the 209,000 is just to take care of that one

         22  percent for '05?

         23                 MR. TRAMONTANO: The 209 million --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: 209 million.

         25  Million, thousand, what's the --
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          2                 MR. TRAMONTANO: 193 million of that

          3  was for the PBA, moving money from the labor reserve

          4  to fund their contract so they can disperse the

          5  money from the proper agency.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Got it.

          7                 And then the MN 8 just contines that

          8  and adds in the items --

          9                 MS. EMANUEL: MN 2.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: MN 2.

         11                 MR. TRAMONTANO: No, MN 8 was Fiscal

         12  Year '05. MN 2 --

         13                 MS. EMANUEL: Continues it because

         14  it's a recurring expense --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay, thanks.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         17  Council member.

         18                 Council Member Sears.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you. Just

         20  of the Department for the Aging, it's 84,000 for

         21  community programs; is that enhancing the existing

         22  programs they have? Or was there a deficit?

         23                 MS. EMANUEL: These represent

         24  transfers of City Council allocations. So,

         25  additional clean-up things that were requested to be
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          2  moved and transferred from one agency to the next.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, thank

          4  you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Any further

          6  questions?

          7                 You did a great job as usual.

          8                 Okay, we're going to be proceeding to

          9  a vote in a couple of minutes. We're just waiting

         10  for a fiscal impact statement, so if my quorum could

         11  stay around.

         12                 But in the meantime, I'd like to talk

         13  about the utility tax exemption that's before you

         14  today that we're going to be voting out shortly, and

         15  that's an item that we had a public hearing on a few

         16  weeks ago at the Finance Committee, and just to

         17  explain it briefly, it does not affect too many

         18  districts in the City, but it has a particular

         19  effect on Northshore Towers in my district and Penn

         20  South in Council Member Quinn's district.

         21                 Basically, this tax was not imposed

         22  until the blackout of the summer of 2003. What

         23  happened was there were well publicized, the issue

         24  that Northshore Towers on the Nassau/Queens border

         25  in eastern Queens and Penn South in Council Member
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          2  Quinn's district, generated their own electricity

          3  and had power during the blackout when everyone else

          4  was blacked out two years ago in August, and as a

          5  result, some bureaucrat in the Department of Finance

          6  woke up the next day after reading the news reports

          7  about the lights and also seeing TV reports and

          8  other media reports, and they said, gee, Northshore

          9  Towers, Penn South generate their own utilities,

         10  they generate their own electricity, have they been

         11  taxed for this utility tax that the City of New York

         12  imposes? Which was never intended to apply to co-op

         13  residents, it was intended to apply to utilities,

         14  such as Con Ed, such as Brooklyn Union Gas, such as

         15  KeySpan, et cetera.

         16                 So, they said, well, since they

         17  haven't been taxed for this utility tax, let's send

         18  them a bill for the last 20 years since the tax has

         19  been in effect and we'll send them a multi-million

         20  dollar bill. And sure enough, they did.

         21                 In the case of Northshore Towers, the

         22  current tax amounts to about 50,000 a year, but when

         23  they submitted the bill for the last 20 years, it

         24  came to about 1.3 or 1.4 million dollars, which was

         25  eventually settled with negotiations with the
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          2  Department of Finance that I was involved in, along

          3  with Northshore Towers, we settled the bill for a

          4  little over 100,000.

          5                 Council Member Quinn had a similar

          6  situation with Penn South and also was very

          7  instrumental in negotiating a settlement for Penn

          8  South also of a multi-million dollar bill, over a

          9  million dollar bill to also a little over a hundred

         10  thousand dollars.

         11                 But the bottom line is that this was

         12  not a fair tax. It was not intended to apply to

         13  co-ops that generate their own electricity and was

         14  adding insult to injury when in particular it only

         15  penalized co-ops that generated their own

         16  electricity and also submetered, and that was the

         17  only way that the Department of Finance was able to

         18  track the amount of electricity used through the

         19  submetering process. And the submetering actually

         20  was something that was energy efficient, that

         21  encouraged co-op owners to preserve electricity and

         22  not overuse electricity when it wasn't necessary,

         23  and as a result they were double penalized.

         24                 So, the Department of Finance

         25  testified at the last hearing saying that they would
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          2  not oppose this legislation, so I look forward to it

          3  passing today and to Mayor Bloomberg signing the

          4  legislation whenever he does that.

          5                 Council Member Quinn, would you like

          6  to make a statement on it?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Just I want to

          8  thank the Chair and the Committee staff for their

          9  work on this issue.

         10                 This is obviously very important to

         11  Penn South, which is a mutual redevelopment housing

         12  complex. It's a very, very, very important

         13  affordable housing in my district, it's also a NORC.

         14  And I just want to thank the Chair for his support

         15  of this, and also the staff for their -- and the

         16  other staff for their hard work on getting this bill

         17  done. It took a lot of back and forth between the

         18  housing complexes and the Council and the

         19  Administration, but it's great that we've come to a

         20  place of agreement that will benefit these two

         21  buildings, and hopefully encourage other buildings

         22  to do energy generation to move to submetering,

         23  which is much better for the environment.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         25  Council Member.
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          2                 I'm just going to call upon our

          3  Counsel to the Committee, Jim Caras, for some

          4  technical corrections in some of the documents you

          5  have before you.

          6                 Jim Caras. And then we're going to

          7  proceed to a vote, so please stay around.

          8                 MR. CARAS: Just a revised fiscal

          9  impact has just been put on your desk for 690-A, the

         10  cogeneration, the utility tax legislation that we're

         11  voting on, and it just indicates that the

         12  legislation is effective January 1st, 2006, so the

         13  revenue numbers, the revenue loss for Fiscal Year

         14  '06 is half of what was listed on the original

         15  statement, rather than $81,000, it's $40,500. And

         16  that's it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. I'm going

         18  to call for a vote on all the items that are coupled

         19  before us. And you know what they are.

         20                 Oh, I'm sorry. I'm sorry. We have a

         21  resolution before us. Thank you, Council Member.

         22                 We have a resolution before us which

         23  is particularly timely because gasoline has gone up

         24  so significantly and the State Legislature is about

         25  to meet in special session. The Senate is meeting
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          2  September 20th and the Assembly will be meeting

          3  shortly thereafter. And Council Member Avella has

          4  proposed as a prime sponsor, I'm glad to be a

          5  co-prime along with him, along with the Speaker on a

          6  resolution which I'm going to call upon Council

          7  Member Avella to address.

          8                 Council Member Avella.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chair.

         11                 First of all, let me express my

         12  appreciation to you for being a prime sponsor of

         13  this along with me and for moving this hearing along

         14  as quickly as we have done. And also to the Speaker

         15  for his support of this resolution.

         16                 You know, a number of months ago,

         17  residents in my district, motorists in my district,

         18  came to me and said we've got to do something about

         19  the price of gasoline.

         20                 My first reaction was, well, what can

         21  we do at the City Council level. And then upon

         22  further investigation, I did find, yes, there is, in

         23  fact, something that we can do. We can amend the

         24  inequity in the sales tax that is applied to every

         25  gallon of gasoline.
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          2                 Right now the State and Federal

          3  Government employs a flat rate, an excise tax, so

          4  that no matter what the price of gasoline is, that

          5  tax remains the same. But we also have an 8.375

          6  percent sales tax, so every time the price of

          7  gasoline goes up, that tax goes up, and we're

          8  unfairly gouging New York City motorists. And it can

          9  be as much as a couple of dollars every time you

         10  fill up your tank.

         11                 So, what we're in effect suggesting

         12  with this resolution, urging the State Legislature

         13  to take action to give the City Council and the City

         14  the authority to change from a percentage to a flat

         15  rate, and hopefully we can make it, the flat rate

         16  back to some point when the price of gasoline was

         17  much lower.

         18                 This will certainly give New York

         19  City residents and motorists a break and help the

         20  economy as well, which is obviously hurting because

         21  of the price of gasoline.

         22                 I appreciate your support and the

         23  support of this Committee. And thank you, Mr.

         24  Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,
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          2  Council member.

          3                 We've also been joined by Council

          4  Member Eric Gioia from Queens.

          5                 Okay, I'm now going to call for a

          6  vote on these coupled, two budget modifications, the

          7  MetroTech resolution, Council Member Avella's

          8  gasoline tax resolution --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Intro. 690-A

         11  which is the utility tax bill that I'm sponsoring

         12  with Council Member Quinn, and the referenced Land

         13  Use item.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         15  before you call for a vote, just because I'd like to

         16  ask you something?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         18  Koppell.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: This is in

         20  the order of new business, but before you call for a

         21  vote, did I understand you to say that the

         22  Legislature is meeting on September 20th?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: The State Senate

         24  is meeting. I don't know about the Assembly.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, this is
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          2  relevant to the Finance Committee, and I'm just

          3  going to raise it now. But people have raised an

          4  issue with respect to the perhaps runoff election,

          5  which I believe is on the 28th. And since that's

          6  going to cost the City millions of dollars, I would

          7  suggest that the Committee consider a request to the

          8  Legislature to suspend the runoff law for this year

          9  and by doing that avoid this cost which apparently

         10  is not necessary because it is only one real

         11  candidate left in the Democratic party. And I raise

         12  it now only because we're all here now and the

         13  Finance Committee is here now, and you just told us

         14  that the Legislature is meeting. So, I don't know,

         15  there's probably not enough time for us to do any

         16  formal resolution, but I will suggest, Mr. Chairman,

         17  you look into the possibility of urging the

         18  Legislature to suspend the runoff law simply for

         19  this year. I don't want to cancel it. I think it's a

         20  good law. But suspend it for this year because of

         21  the tremendous cost to the City, that all the voters

         22  are laughing at us and the press is making fun of

         23  this, and we could easily deal with it because of --

         24  well, the Senate has gone back, the Assembly could

         25  go back. And they could deal with this proposal by
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          2  Councilman Avella at the same time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: That's a very

          4  good suggestion, Council member. And, of course,

          5  we're looking to save money in the City and the cost

          6  of the runoff would be an unnecessary cost. It may

          7  not be necessary anyway because the absentee ballot

          8  account would reveal there wouldn't be a runoff

          9  anyway. So, the point may be moot. We'll know in the

         10  next day or two, so, rather than do something

         11  formally at this point. But there still is enough

         12  time, assuming the absentee ballot account indicates

         13  that there is no -- that there is a runoff, that

         14  there is time for Albany to act.

         15                 But I think it would be a little

         16  premature for us to act today, because we'll know in

         17  the next day or two whether there even is a runoff

         18  schedule, but it's a very good suggestion and it's

         19  something that we could certainly call upon our

         20  colleagues in Albany to act on. Thank you.

         21                 Okay, I'm going to call for a roll

         22  call vote.

         23                 Read the roll. These are all coupled

         24  items.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Weprin.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Aye on all.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Boyland.

          4                 (No response.)

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

          6                 (No response.)

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye on all.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye on

         15  all.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Aye on all.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on all.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Aye on all.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: With

         24  particular enthusiasm to Councilman Avella's

         25  resolution, aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gioia.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Yes on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye on all.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye on all.

         12  Particularly for Councilman Avella's resolution.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vann.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye on all.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gallagher.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Aye on all.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye on all.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 18 in the

         22  affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         23  abstentions, all items are adopted. Council members,

         24  please sign the Committee reports.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. I'm

          3  going to keep the roll open until the Stated

          4  Meeting.

          5                 Other than that we're adjourned.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 12:17 p.m.)
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